
MINUTES OF THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
December 8, 2008 

 
 
The regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order by Chairman Mark Moore 
at 7:03 p.m. at the Village Hall. 
 
Members present:  Chairman Mark Moore, William Cotey, Terry Howard, Howard Jaffe, Walter 
Oakley, and Andy Robinson. 
 
Members absent:  Kurt Hezner. 
 
A quorum was established. 
 
Village Staff present:  John Spoden; Director of Community Development; and David Smith, Senior 
Planner. 
 
Board Member Jaffe moved, seconded by Board Member Robinson, to approve the November 10, 
2008, Zoning Board of Appeals meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 6 - 0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
ZBA 08-27 Warren Johnson Architects, Inc., Authorized Agent for William Seitz 
  540 W. Peterson Road 
 

Request is for variations to: 1) increase the maximum number of permitted business 
signs from 2 to 22 in order to install gas station signs; and 2) increase the maximum 
permitted gross sign surface area from 154.5 square feet to approximately 223.4 square 
feet for property located in a C-3, General Commercial District. 

 
Chairman Moore recused himself due to conflict of interest with the petitioner. 
 
Board Member Howard moved, seconded by Board Member Cotey, to appoint Howard Jaffe as 
Acting Chairman in Vice Chairman Kurt Hezner’s absence. 
 
Motion carried 5 - 0. 
 
Mr. David Smith, Senior Planner, stated that the petitioner is requesting sign variations in order to 
install gas station related signs for property located in a C-3, General Commercial District at 540 W. 
Peterson Road.  Mr. Smith stated that the petitioner currently owns and operates the Car Spa Car 
Wash and has recently submitted plans to develop a four pump gas dispenser Shell gasoline station 
for the property.  Mr. Smith stated that the proposed improvements include a canopy over the pumps 
with the Shell logo throughout.  Mr. Smith stated that the gas station itself is a permitted use in the 
C-3 District and is not subject to the Zoning Board Appeals purview. 



Minutes of the December 8, 2008, Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Mr. Ron Ambrose, architect for the petitioner, stated that there are a total of 16 signs on the proposed 
gas pumps.  He stated that the signs on the pumps are small and include advertisements affixed to the 
face of the pumps, as well as pump toppers.  He stated that he has provided a written response to the 
Standards for Variation.  He stated that the hardship is not self-created and that the land on which 
both the car wash and the future gas station sit upon include two separate parcels.  He stated that any 
other business could have located on the second lot.  He stated that the gas station will require no 
other variations.  He stated that the two uses work well together.  He stated that the proposed gas 
station development will be compliant to both the Village of Libertyville and the Lake County Storm 
Water Management Commission regulations. 
 
Mr. Robert Culp, 1901 Forest Creek, stated that he is concerned about the screening along the rear of 
the subject property. 
 
Mr. Ambrose stated that the petitioner will add more landscaping along the rear of the property. 
 
Board Member Oakley asked why the petitioner needs to have the pump toppers on the gas pumps.  
Mr. Ambrose stated that the Shell company wants to project their image as much as possible. 
 
Board Member Cotey asked if the petitioner will develop the property further after the gas station.  
Mr. William Seitz, petitioner, stated that he has no further plans to develop the site after the gas 
station. 
 
Board Member Cotey asked if the petitioner will add more signs for the food mart portion of the 
business.  Mr. Seitz stated that they would not add more signs than what is presented in the proposed 
plans. 
 
Board Member Cotey stated that he would like to see a reduction in the gas pump toppers.  He stated 
that he would like to see the electronic price sign displays reduced in sign area as well. 
 
Mr. Ambrose stated that the price display is on an eight foot panel.  He stated that if they reduce the 
size of the price display portion of the sign any further, then it will be too small to read from the 
road. 
 
Board Member Cotey stated that the proposed freestanding sign is oversized for the property.  He 
stated that the petitioner should consider meeting with the neighbors to discuss their landscape plan 
proposal. 
 
Board Member Howard stated that the appropriate catch basins should be installed in order to 
alleviate any environmental concerns.  He stated that consideration should be given to eliminating 
the one canopy sign on the west elevation. 
 
Mr. Seitz stated that he would agree to remove the sign from the west elevation side of the canopy. 
 



Minutes of the December 8, 2008, Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Board Member Howard asked if the petitioner plans to sell the second lot.  Mr. Seitz stated that he 
has no plans at this time to sell the second lot. 
 
Board Member Howard stated that consideration should be given to reducing the price sign display 
on the freestanding sign. 
 
Acting Chairman Jaffe asked what the hours of operation of the gas station will be.  Mr. Seitz stated 
that they may open at 6:00 a.m. and close at either 10:00 p.m. or 11:00 p.m., but he is not certain at 
this time. 
 
Acting Chairman Jaffe asked the petitioner if they would consider reducing the size of the 
freestanding sign.  Mr. Seitz stated that the proposed sign size is adequate for their needs and he 
would like to keep it at the proposed sign size. 
 
Board Member Cotey stated that that the petitioner should consider reducing the sign size. 
 
Acting Chairman Jaffe stated that there are two Zoning Board of Appeals board members missing.  
He stated that Staff should review sign area interpretation for those advertisements affixed to the 
facade of the gas pumps.  He asked the petitioner what he would like for the Zoning Board of 
Appeals to do tonight.  Mr. Seitz stated that he would like for the sign variation request to be 
continued to a future meeting. 
 
In the matter of ZBA 08-27, Board Member Cotey moved, seconded by Board Member Robinson, to 
continue this item to the January 12, 2009, Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 
 
Motion carried 5 - 0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND DISCUSSION: 
 
Board Member Robinson moved, seconded by Board Member Howard, to adjourn the Zoning Board 
of Appeals meeting. 
 
Motion carried 6 - 0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 


